MEETING AGENDA
SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY

Wednesday, April 23, 2025
9:00 am CDT
The meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams
Click here to join the meeting:

Join Teams Meeting
Or Call: 1-605-679-7263, ID 278 006 025#

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Open Forum

5. Approval of the Draft Minutes (January 22, 2025, March 18, 2025, April 8, 2025)
6. Executive Secretary Report

Financial Report for the Month Ending March 31, 2025

On-line Applications

FSMTB Executive Summit

Verification of Education when an Applicant’s School has Closed
Acceptance of emailed Verification of Education and Transcripts from Schools

PoooTw

7. Federal Apprenticeships — Presentation
8. Records Retention Manual — Review and Update Manual

9. Complaint Process — Approve Investigative Committee Dismissal of Complaints with
no Probable Cause

10. Policy for Conversion of Credit Hours to Clock Hours for Massage Therapy Education

11. Report of Round-Table Discussions Regarding Possible Legislation for 2026 — Fallon Helm
& Kallyn Reinert

12. Next Meeting — July 23, 2025 -- Proposed Agenda ltems

13. Adjourn



SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, January 22, 2025
Via Microsoft Teams

1. Call to Order

President Fallon Helm called the meeting to order at 9:00 am CST. Members of the public could
join the meeting via Microsoft Teams or tele-conferencing.

2. Roll Call
President Fallon Helm read the roll and a quorum was established.

Members Present: Fallon Helm — via Teams Meeting
Kallyn Reinert — via Teams Meeting
Thor Thonvold — via Teams Meeting

Members Absent: Al Trace

Others Present: Kate Boyd, Executive Secretary - via Teams Meeting
Steve Blair Staff Legal Counsel — via Teams Meeting
Tamara Lee, DOH Attorney — via Teams Meeting

Guests Present: Bridget Myers, Rhanda Heller, Dazee Gertz, Kammie Thompson,
Nikki Hooper, Heather Thrash, Seth Dinkel, Olawa Rae-Bruhjell,
Shayla Nyberg-Sutton,

3. Approval of Agenda

Executive Secretary Kate Boyd stated she would like to add an item to her Executive Secretary
Report to include federal apprenticeships. Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thor
Thonvold, to approve the agenda as amended. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea;
Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not voting)

4. Open Forum

Rhanda Heller asked several questions about the complaint process that Board legal counsel
Steve Blair would be reviewing under agenda item 7. She also asked that others be invited to
the round-table sessions that are currently being held with licensees and other interested
parties. A report of the round-table discussions for possible legislation in 2026 was agenda item
8 on the agenda for a status report from President Fallon Helm and Board member Kallyn
Reinert.

5. Approval of December 5, 2024 Meeting Minutes
Thor Thonvold made a motion, seconded by Kallyn Reinert, to approve the minutes of the

December 5, 2024 meeting. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea;
Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not voting)



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
January 22, 2025
Page 2

6. Executive Secretary Report

Financial Report for the month ending December 31, 2024 - Executive Secretary Kate Boyd
reported that the financial report for the month ending December 31, 2024, showed the
available budget of $43,339.18 and cash center balance of $38,811.66 (reserve funds).

Office Procedures & Policies

Ms. Boyd stated that she recently had a conversation with the manager of the State’s Records
Management. There are several things that should be updated, including the reference to
microfilm old records, that should be changed to scanning and digitally saving. She would also
like to have the board move toward online applications and fee payments, in an effort to
eliminate duplication of records. Every application, after it is completed, is scanned and
uploaded to the database. We could eliminate the paper files and save time by not having to
scan documents that are received digitally. We would need an update in our Records Retention
manual in order to do this. She also asked for Board input on whether or not it is acceptable to
use the official documents that we possess when an individual applies for a license after having
let their previous license expire. These would be the exam pass/fail score received from the
organization who owns the exam, and Verification of Education documents that were previously
properly received from the school the applicant attended. In many cases, the school attended is
no longer operational, so it is impossible for the applicant to request another Verification of
Education form from a school that doesn’t exist. The consensus of the Board that it is
acceptable to use national exam reports and Verification of Education forms, including the
official school transcript that the Board already has in its possession, as long as the documents
were properly submitted when the applicant previously became licensed. The manager of
Records Management provided a Word document of the Board's current Records Retention
Manual to use as a working copy. Ms. Boyd indicated she will draft updates and then present to
the Board at the next meeting for their information, review, updates, and approval to be
submitted for review by the State’s Records Retention group that meets twice a year to review
and approve changes. Their next meeting will likely be in July. Legal counsel Steve Blair also
noted that there is a broader Records Retention Manual that applies to most state agencies so it
should be reviewed at the same time to ensure that our manual is also in compliance with that.

Request for Board Approval of a Policy for Investigative committee to dismiss a
compliance, in compliance with SDCL 36-1C-4.

A copy of SDCL 36-1C-4 was provided in the meeting packet. Ms. Boyd asked if the Board
would like to implement a policy to allow for dismissal of a complaint for lack of probably cause.
Legal counsel Steve Blair suggested this be put on the agenda for the next meeting for the
Board’s consideration. He added that there may already be something similar that was
approved a few years ago by the Board.

Federal Apprenticeships

Ms Boyd reported that she recently met with two South Dakota Department of Labor individuals

who had contacted her about federal apprenticeships. She suggested that they be invited to the

April 23, 2025 meeting to make a presentation on what this would entail. If the Board chooses to
pursue this, we will need to review to see if we need a change in our laws.

7. Review of Complaint Process



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
January 22, 2025
Page 3

Legal counsel Steve Blair gave a detailed overview of the complaint process. SDCL 1-26, 36-
35, and 36-1C require boards and commissions to follow these specific laws. Additional Board
of Massage Therapy laws SDCL 36-35-13 Unprofessional Conduct and 36-35-22 Grounds for
cancellation, suspension, or revocation of license - Hearing - Appeal also help dictate the
process. In response to questions raised during the Open Forum, Attorney Blair clarified that.
yes, the Board does receive a copy of complaints, although not until they are considering a
complaint. The reason for this is the Board needs to be impartial until the case comes before
them. Also, if a licensee has an active pending complaint, license comes up for renewal, and the
licensee attempts to renew in a timely manner during the renewal period, the license is not
renewed until the complaint case is completed. However, state law allows a licensee to continue
to work under their previous license until the complaint case has been settled.

8. Report of Round-Table Discussions Regarding Possible 2026 Legislation

President Fallon Helm and Board member Kallyn Reinert gave a report of the status of the
round-table meetings that are being conducted to review areas that the Board may want to
pursue legislation in 2026. Round-table meeting reports will be provided at the next meeting.
The discussion topics the group is reviewing are shown below.

Discussion Topics 2026 for Legislation:
1. Brick & Mortar Licenses:
o Review of current requirements and potential updates for brick-and-mortar
businesses.
2. Changing Licensing to Every Other Year:
o Pros and cons of transitioning from annual to biennial licensing for professionals
in the industry.
3. Business Permits:
o Discussion on streamlining the process for obtaining and renewing business
permits.
4. Instructor Credentials:
o Requirements for instructor qualifications and potential changes to the
credentialing process.
5. Title Protection:
o Considerations for protecting professional titles in the industry to prevent misuse
and ensure consumer trust.
6. Guides on "Yes" Conviction Checklist:
o Review of existing conviction-related criteria for licensing eligibility, and possible
improvements for clarity and fairness.
7. Labor/Health Board Consideration of Governance:
o Discussion on whether and how labor and health boards should be involved in
governance and oversight of industry-related matters.
8. Increase in Access to Education and Marketplace:
o Strategies for increasing access to educational opportunities and expanding
marketplace accessibility.
9. School's In Rules:
o Review of rules governing educational institutions and schools in the industry,
including licensing requirements and operational standards.
10. Application of Education Facilities Process:



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
January 22, 2025
Page 4

o Discussion on how to streamline the process for approving and regulating
educational facilities.

11. Program Structure & Distance Learning Consideration in Rules/Regs:
o Deliberating on the role of distance learning within industry programs, and
potential updates to rules and regulations governing this area.
12. Complaint Process:
o Review and potential improvements to the complaint process, including

leveraging the Pennsylvania rulemaking process and ensuring due process for
those with felony convictions.

13. Include Healthcare Professional Licensure in All Language:
o Discussion on broadening the scope of professional licensure language to
include healthcare professionals where applicable.

9. Executive Session

Thor Thonvold made a motion, seconded by Kallyn Reinert, to go into Executive Session.
MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea: Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not
voting)

Executive Session began at 10:02 am and the board fell out of executive session at 10:35 am.

Review Application T10978 (SDCL 1-25-2(3) & 1-27-1.5(5)
Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thonvold, to approve Application T10978. MOTION
PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea: Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not voting)

Dismissal of Complaint 2025-001

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thonvold, to dismiss Complaint 2025-001.
MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea: Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not
voting)

Communication with Legal Counsel (SDCL 1-25-2(3)

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thonvold, to add criminal convictions on the next
meeting agenda. At that time the Board will be asked to adopt a motion regarding the
procedures to follow regarding applicants with criminal convictions. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call
Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea: Trace absent and not voting)

10. Upcoming Meetings

Applicant Requested a Hearing — Set Hearing Date
The Board and staff reviewed their calendars and agreed to schedule this hearing on April 8,
2025 at 1:00 pm. The hearing will be held via Teams and will be open to the public.

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting — April 23, 2025

The following items were requested by the Board to be on the agenda for the April 23, 2025
meeting:

Federal Apprenticeships
Felony Convictions



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
January 22, 2025
Page 5

-- On-line Applications

-- Records Retention Manual

-- Complaint Process — Consider Approving Investigative Committee dismissal of complaints
with no probable cause

-- Policy for Acceptance of Credit to Clock Hour conversation for massage therapy education

-- Round-table Meeting Report

11. Adjourn

Thor Thonvold made a motion, seconded by Kallyn Reinert to adjourn. MOTION PASSED. Roll
Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace absent and not voting)

The meeting was adjourned at 11;00 am
Respectfully submitted,

Executive Secretary Kate Boyd and Secretary Thor Thonvold



SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, March 18, 2025
Via Microsoft Teams

1. Call to Order

President Fallon Helm called the meeting to order at 9:00 am CST. Members of the public could
join the meeting via Microsoft Teams or tele-conferencing.

2. Roll Call

President Fallon Helm read the roll and a quorum was established.

Members Present: Fallon Helm — via Teams Meeting
Kallyn Reinert - via Teams Meeting
Thor Thonvold — via Teams Meeting
Al Trace

Others Present; Kate Boyd, Executive Secretary — via Teams Meeting
Steve Blair Staff Legal Counsel — via Teams Meeting
Tamara Lee, DOH Attorney - via Teams Meeting

Guests Present: Bob Mercer, KELOLAND TV

3. Approval of Agenda

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to approve the agenda. MOTION
PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace yea)

4. Open Forum

President Helm stated the open forum was open, but no members of the public asked to speak.
5. Executive Session

Cases 2024-003-004-005-006

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to go into Executive Session to discuss
Complaint Cases 2024-003-004-005-006. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert
yea; Thonvold yea; Trace yea)

The Executive Session began at 9:02 am.

Executive Session ended at 9:44 am

Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Al Trace, to pursue a stipulation agreement with the

licensee in Complaint Cases 2024-003-004-005-006. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm
yea; Reinert yea; Trace yea; Thonvold abstain)



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
March 18, 2025
Page 2

6. Upcoming Meetings

The Board was reminded that a hearing will be held on April 8, 2025 at 1:00 pm, via Teams and
that the regular board meeting is scheduled for April 23, 2025 at 9:00 am via Teams.

7. Adjourn

Thor Thonvold made a motion, seconded by Kallyn Reinert to adjourn. MOTION PASSED. Roll
Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace yea)

The meeting was adjourned at 11:00 am
Respectfully submitted,

Executive Secretary Kate Boyd and Secretary Thor Thonvold



SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY HEARING MINUTES
Tuesday, April 8, 2025
Via Microsoft Teams

1. Call to Order

President Fallon Helm called the meeting to order at 1:03 PM CDT. Members of the public could
join the meeting via Microsoft Teams or tele-conferencing.

2. Roll Call
President Fallon Helm read the roll and a quorum was established.

Members Present: Fallon Helm — via Teams Meeting
Kallyn Reinert — via Teams Meeting
Thor Thonvold - via Teams Meeting
Al Trace -- Absent

Others Present: Kate Boyd, Executive Secretary — via Teams Meeting
Steve Blair Staff Legal Counsel — via Teams Meeting
Tamara Lee, DOH Attorney — via Teams Meeting

Guests Present: Bob Mercer, KELOLAND TV

Rhanda Heller

Bridget Myers
3. Approval of Agenda
It was noted that Open Forum had erroneously been omitted from the meeting agenda. Kallyn
Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thor Thonvold, to amend the agenda to add Open Forum.
MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea: Thonvold yea; Trace absent)
Kallyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thor Thonvold, to approve the agenda as
amended. MOTION PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace
absent)
Open Forum
President Helm stated the open forum was open, but no members of the public asked to speak.

4. Formal Hearing — T10960 Appeal of License Denial

A hearing was held at the request of applicant Jodi Hebl for the board to reconsider its intent to
deny her massage therapy application.

Attorney Tamara Lee represented Board of Massage Therapy Staff. Jodi Hebl represented
herself without the assistance of legal counsel.



Board of Massage Therapy Minutes
April 8, 2025
Page 2

Following the evidentiary and deliberation portions of the meeting, Kallyn Reinert made a
motion, seconded by Thor Thonvold, to authorize President Fallon Helm to sign an order
granting Jodi Hebl's massage therapy license based on her 2022 application. MOTION
PASSED. Roll Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace absent)

5. Adjourn

Kllyn Reinert made a motion, seconded by Thor Thonvold to adjourn. MOTION PASSED. Roll
Call Vote (Helm yea; Reinert yea; Thonvold yea; Trace absent)

The hearing was adjourned at 2:31 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Executive Secretary Kate Boyd and Secretary Thor Thonvold



9°02 9L EEE’GL 9T SEL'F
0°0 -£€'968'¥%2 79 'FE9’LO LTI '8F¥6°2
0°L8 88°99¥%’TS Z1°669°L 66°98L°T
0°00T 00°00€ 00°0 00°0
6°6€ I8'9L0°T 6T°€29°T 00°0
0°0 -¥T 7P9°'62 S¥ IT0‘99 LT 8¥6°'C
0°00T 00 TLE'E 00°0 00°0
0° %76 88°66S5°'8 rARA 1 66°92T
L'S8 00°L98‘2Z¥ 00°2ST‘L 00°099°T
902 GG 0LS 92 9L E€EE'SL 9T GEL'FP
0°00T 00°00€ 00°0 00°0
6°6¢ I8°9L0°T 6T°€29'1T 00°0
0°0 -PT ¥59 ‘62 SF°"TIT0'99 LT 8%6'T
0°00T 00" TLE'S 00°0 00°0
0" %6 88°665'8 Z1°LPS 66°92T
L°S8 00°L98°'2ZF 00°2ST’L 00°099°T
TAY TIGVIIVAY HIVA-OL-YvEX XTHINOW
Lod Iasang SMENLIANAIXE
G6°0LG'9¢ 9L EEE’SL
GG 0L5'9Z 9L "EEE'GL
08 L9S'ET §S 0LS ‘92 9L €ge’SL
HONVIVE SNOIIVINAOHNddY STINIIANIGXHE
HSYD FTIVTIVAY HIVA-OL-9VHX

Gz0Z/62/€0 FIva

7S9 ‘T =FOW4E

ATHLNOW

heoe v

000L0ZS
000S02S
000%02s
000€02S
00020TS
000TOTS

AN¥dWOD

LOONVHYE

LozZS
S02s
vocs
€02s
¢01s
TOTS

(JELIDANT TYLOL

69°858°92 00°0 00°€9L'8ZT IOL I-€099 ANYAWOD
69°858°92 0070 00°L65°69 STYILOLENS HO
00°0 00°0 00°991°69 SIYLOLINS Sd
00°0 00°0 00°00€ AVIINO TVLIAYD
00°0 000 oo-ooL‘z STILVW ® SAITd4NS
69°858°9¢2 00°0 00°922°€9 SOAS TYNLOVILNOD
0070 00°0 00" TLE'E THAVIL
00°0 00°0 00" LFT 6 SLIAANTYS HATAOTIAWI
00°0 00°0 00°6T0°0S SHTIVIVS HIAXOTIWA
SAQYYOd ONISNEADIT 3 TYNOISSTIONA I-£069
! ANVAWOD Xd
69°858°9Z 00°0 00°€9L°82T STYLOL
00°0 00°0 00°00¢€ AYILOO TYLIAYD
00°0 00°0 00°00L"Z STMIVW ¥ SAITIANS
69°858°92 00°0 00°922°€9 SOAS TYNLOWHMINOD
00°0 00°0 00 TLE'E TAAVHL
00°0 00°0 00" LPT'6 SLIAENTY AAXOTINI
00°0 00°0 00°6T0'0S SHATIVIVS AAXOTIWI
HIVA-OL-¥YHEX HIVA-OL-YYHK aargoand TINLIANIIXE
SEONVHEHNINT SILNIWITHNOD INOOWY d0 ILDACIO

69°858°9Z 00°0 00°0 00°€9L'82T

69°858°9¢ 00°0 00°0 00°€9L'82T

69°858°92 00°0 00°0 00°€9L82T I

SHONVIEHNDONT SLNIFWLIWNOD SYAASNYHL NOILYINdO¥ddY
ALYA-OL-dvVAX HIVA-OL-¥YAX NOIIVI¥dONddY TYNIOIHO

LOL dHOD TIV
LOL dELIDANG

-£099

dHoD

OANI - AdVYHHIL FOVSSYW A0 MIVOd HWYN LINN II9dngd

9 ‘ONINIVWEY SAVAd XYd

%2752
§202/1€E/€0 :d0 S¥W
SaNNd TTIVIIVAY

ONINIVWHY 9VHEX Xd

I1260 LINN ILIOANH

ogdrocvg



44"

d9¥d

»xx YA 08" LGS ET 11260 TYLOL LINN LAasandg

+» ¥d 08 LI9S'ET TI260 €059 TYIOL LINN SaAnd/dWOD
*» 90 08 L9S'ET 8T9 €059 TYIOL TDYNOS/ANYAWOD

AdVIIHL TOVWSSYW A0 qUvod ¥a 08°L9S'ET 0000FTT O0¥8T9000T260 €059
NOILATMOSEA HALNAD ¥D/¥da AONYTYH INNODOY WALNAD ANYANWO0D

OANI - AdVYIHL IADVSSYW J0 Qd¥0od TT<C60 -LINN LADANH
HLTVIH 60 : AONEDV

GZ02/1E/E0 30 SW
SHONVIVE YEINID HSWYD
YIONYd HLNOS A0 HALVIS 1607 TVE



69

XEXRFRE
REXXERY
EXFEN
rrE¥
AR

ry

xx

d9¥d

€T

ET’
€T’

€T

€T
ET’
ET”
€T’
00°
00"
“00€

00

00°
00°

00

00°
00"
00"
00°
00"

"EL8oL

€LB'0OL
£L8°0L

"ELBOL

€L8'0L
€91
EFP9’'T
EV9'T
ooe
oot

0€6 “89
0€6 ‘89

"0TIS‘E

00%’s
0ET
143
000°T
G95°89

HLYVA-OL-¥v3aX

00°STL
00°STL
00°STL
00°STL
00°STL
00~
00°
00°
00"
00°
00"
00°STL
00°STL
00° 092
00°00F
00°
00°GZT
00°
-00°0L

HLNOW LNIHEND

00
1900

TTIZ260 'LINO €
€059 +dWOD
11260 THMIND

TITZ260 “ULND

078T9001TZ60 ‘YLND

ANNIATY YHHLO

ANNIATY ONILYIIdONON

SENNIATY ONILVIIdONON

Sv0026¥

SHOIAYES ¥ SHTIVS ¥0d SHADYYHD

SLSIT-SHId0D HWOINI JSIW

1005657

SEAd 3 SLIWYAd ‘SHSNADIT

(TYINIWNYHAOD-NON) SNISNADIT 4NJ00 ¥ SSHENISAH

SHdd DNISNIDIT
SHHd NOILYOITdAV
Hdd NOILVAILIVEY

STHI XYWTIOdWAL

SHAA HAILDUYNI

SHEA TYMINTH

o66E6CY
90TE6CTY
VOTE6CY
€0TEGTY
¢0TE6CY
T0TEGCY

€069

€059

6% Hhrere) 4
0ce6v +LODY
0¥8T900TTIZ60
14 “LOOY
S6ST SLOOY
0¥8T900T1Z60
(44 - LIJY
£E6CV LOJY

SQYVYOH ONISNIDIT 3 TUYNOISSHIOMd HWUYN ANYIWOD

NOILAI¥NOSHEA

OdNI - AJVYIHL IOVSSYW J0 TUV0H
HLTYHEH

GZ0Z/TIE/S0 ONIANT dOI¥Ed ¥Od
LINN I390Ng X9 ANMVWANS FONIATH
YIOMYd HINOS A0 HALVIS

LNOODDY

€059

€099 O0FBT900TIZ60
€059 O0FP8T900T11Z60
€099 O0¥BT90011260
€099 O0FBT900TTZ60
€059 O0FPBT900TIZ60
€099 O0¥P8T900TTZ60
ON ANWdHWOD
dW0D YALNAD

TIZ260 LINN LADANd

60 ADNIADY

§202/62/€0 quSgecove



xx ¥d

k-to]
t-o)
ga

aa
ga
¥a
ua

ua
|a
aa

- o)
¥o
o
ua
- to)
a0
aa
¥d
k-t
qa
[-to)
uo
aa

k-t
ga
k- o]
a0
aa

¥0
qa

LIT'T HOYd

LZ ¥9G 1T
00°S26°'6

00°S¢
00°s2Z2Z
00°S8T°0T

Lz vsc’‘z

0522
0S LEF'T
€V LVE
A8 1°%4
58 L
58" L
g8 L

GL ¥8¢

00°STL

00°09¢
00°00F
00°S2T
00°S8L
00°S9
00°99
00°99
00°S9
00°99
00°99
00°99T
00°G9T
007991
00°S6T
00°S6T
00°96T
00°se2
00°szZz2
00-sze

LNOQOWY

§202/02/€0
5z0z/02/€0
520z/02/€0

SZ0Z/¥2/€0
S202/12/€0
S202/50/€0
§20Z/50/€0
S20Z/€0/€0
5202/£0/€0
S§202/€0/€0
S§202/¥T/€0

SZ0Z/v0/€0
§202/%¥0/€0
520Z/70/€0
§20Z/v0/€0
S520e/ve/c€o
S20Z/vZ/€0
szozZ/ve/c0
Gz0ez/12/0
S20Z/12/€0
6202/12/€0
SZ0Z/61/€0
SZ0Z/61/€0
S202/61/€0
SZ0Z/ET/€0
SZOZ/ET/€0
SZ0Z/ET/E0
G20Z/0T/€0
SZ0Z/0T/E0
SZ0Z/0T/€0

LYd
LOAAIH

7590600892
7590600852
890T0ECT

9LT9Za
9LT92d
9LT924d

TIFS6E
TIFS6E
TIFS6E
09€96¢E
09€S6€
09€S6E
svevec
SV6F6€E
Sh6v6e
90S¥6€
90S¥6€
90S¥P6€
86TV6E
86TF6E
B6TV6E

# 04 ¥0 ‘¥OaNIA

‘TYAO¥daY

S20Z/TE/E0

YIOMV¥A HINOS d0 HALVILS

S20Z/12/€0
5202/12/€0
SZ0Z/12/€0

S§202/92/€0
§Z0Z/92/€0
6z0z/21/€0
G20Z/2T/€0
§202/S0/€0
§202/S0/€0
S20Z/S0/€0
SzZ0zZ/T2/€0

G202/S0/€0
5202/50/€0
G20Z/S0/€0
620Z/50/€0
§202/92/€0
S20Z/92/€0
§202/92/€0
§202/92/€0
§202/92/€0
§20Z/92/€0
S202/12/€0
5202/12/€0
€202/12/€0
G20Z/6T/€0
S20Z/6T/€0
S202/6T/€0
G202/21/€0
G202/21/€0
G202/21/€0

HLYd
1S0d

7S90SZNODTFIL
7S905ZNODZVEL
#590600SS2

8L0600XdDd
€9T-S62N
OLOCTSHE
6902TSHA
60L0S60Q
60L0S600
60L0S604
8802054da

£2L0S60"
€2L0S60"
€2L0S60d
€2L0S60Y
09LTS60D
09LTS60D
09LTS602
6FLTS60D
6FLTIS60D
6FPLTS60D
62LTS60D
6CLTS60D
6ZLTS60D
¥69TS600
76915600
76919602
CLY9TS60D
€LITS60D
ZL3TS60D

HONYHD LIN--ANVAWOD THWLOL

HONVHO LIN dN0¥D INNODDW TYLOL

00000000000050%7028 0¥8T900TTZ60 £0S9
000000000000507028 O78T900TTC60 £0S9
000000000000507028 OFP8T900TTC60 €059
IONYHO LIN dN0¥D LNNODDV TYLOL
080000000000£S702S 0F8T900TTIC60 £0S9
00000000000080%02S O¥8T900TTZ60 £0S9
00000000000002702S O¥8T900TTZ60 E£0S9
00000000000002702S OFBT900TTZ60 E£0S9
00000000000096¥%02S OF8T900TTZ60 £0S9
000000000000967025 O¥8T900TTZ60 £0S9
00000000000096¥70CS O¥8T900TTZ60 £0S9
0000000000008TF02S OFPB8T900TTZ60 E£0S9
FONYHO LIN d400¥D INNODOY TWIOL

066£6CF OFPBT900TTIZ60 €059

90TE6CYF O¥PBT900TTZ60 €£0S9

E0TEGCY OPBT900TTZ60 £0S9

T0TE6CY OFBT900TTZ60 £0S9

TOTE6ZF OPBT900TTZ60 £0S9

T0TE6CY OFPBT900TTZ60 £0S9

TOTE6CY OP8T900TTZ60 £0S9

TOTEG6ZY OFPBTI900TTC60 £0S9

TOTEGCY OFPBT900TTZ60 £0S9

TOTE6ZF OFP8T900TTZ60 €059

TOTE6CF OVBI900TTIZ60 €059

TOTE6CF OFPBT900TTIZ60 £0S9

TOTE6CF OFPBT900TTZ60 £059

TOTE6ZF OPBT900TTT60 £059

TOTE6ZF OPBT900TTZ60 £0S9

10TE6ZF OP8T900TTZ60 £0S9

TOTE6EZF OP8TI900TTZE60 £0S9

TOTE6ZF OFP8TI900TTIZ60 £0S9

T0TE6ZF OFPBTI900TTIZ60 €059

SQUVO" ONISNIDIT ® TUNOISSHIOHNd HEAWYN ANYIWOD
€099 ON XNWYdWOD
LNNOJDOW HILNID dHOD

aIl INIWNND0d

OINI - AJVYHHL HOVSSYW J0 (QUWOH
HLTYHEH 60

ONIONA dOoIy¥dd ¥od
LY0dHY ¥HHONOA TYNYNOL ANV HANIATE XTHINOW

gzoez/62/¢€0

TI1I260 LINN dng
AONIOW

LRCOAIVE



EEXXERRRR
REFEXRER
XNy
XxRrEy

*

P

s

*¥

xx

3

rrwy

L L]

*¥

Xy
* ¥

ga
aa
4ada
aa
ga
aa
qaa
aa
aa
-0
ga
ga
qa
qa
aa
aa
ua
qaa
qa
qaa
qa
ua
¥a
ga
aa
- («f
k- (e
ua
ua
ga
aa

-te)

/4a

169

9T GEL'Y
9T 'SEL'F
9T 'SEL'¥
9T 'SEL'P
9T SEL'Y
LT 8F6°‘2
LT 876°T
SL TIFE
06 "ttE
S8°L
S8°L
S8°L
0522
0s-22
L9°T09
EF°L¥E
XA 14
SL %82
SL %8¢
0S"LEV'T
0S LEF'T
00°092
00" S€
00°522
66°98L'T
66°92T
66921
66 "9ZT
00°099°'T
00°099°T
00°099°T

LNOOWY

=IOV

89¢26zZ¢eCT LTLYdONILS 26209600
9LT9Zd
9LT9Z4d
9LT9¢d

890T0EZT  ONOSIMIITY ZLEGESZO

890T0€2T ONOSLIFaTY ZLEGBSZO
dnods HAGNON HWYN # INIWXYE ¥O
JOaNIA JoaNaA LYOHS ‘# TIAGAY AL

SZ0Z/v1/€0
S202/50/€0
§202/S0/€0
S20Z/50/€0
G20Z/92/€0

Gz0e/eT/E0
gzoe/eT/e0

szo0e/12/€0
5202/92/€0

§202/92/€0
gz0eg/9z/€0

Se0Z/¥1/€0

§202/¥1/€0

HLYa
ONILSOd

TIZ60 :IINN "9

00TTZ60 “dLND

T900TTIZ60 ~9LND

0¥8T900TTC60 ‘YLND

€0S9 - dHWOD

SESNIEAXHE ONILVIId0 [4°] :dNO¥D
SHOTAYES TUVALDWILNOD %025 :(IDACH0
096%0cS -€nsSrdo

709LT 00000000000096702S OF8T900TTZ60
60L0S600 00000000000096%702S O¥8T900TTZ60
60L05600 00000000000096702S O¥8T900TTZ60
60,0560 00000000000096702S O¥BT900TTZ60
0€S¥0ZS -€NSrgo

8L0600XH2d 080000000000£S¥02S O¥8T900TTIZ60
0027025 :dOSCdO

0LOZTSHI 00000000000002702S OFP8T900TTIZ60
690¢TSHA 00000000000002702S O¥P8T900TTZ60
08TF0CS :€NSrdo

88020540 0000000000008T¥0ZS OVBT900TTIZ60
080%0cSs :-d9NsSrdo

€9T-S6ZN 00000000000080¥0ZS O¥BTI900TTIZ60
0S0F02S :d0sSrdo

FS90SZNODFF¥9L 00000000000050%02S OF8T900TTZ60
FS90SZNODZFEL 00000000000050702S OFP8T900TTZ60

SHEDIA¥AS TUNOSYHd TS $dNO¥Ud
SLIJEANTE FIAXQOTWE ZO0TS :LOECHO
0T020TS -dnsrdo

¢IE£0SZXEDD 000000000000T0C0TS OFBT900TTZ60
SHIYVIVS FIXOTAWE TOTIS :LDHECHO

0EOQTOTS :dOSCHO

€TE0SEXEID 000000000000E0TOTS O¥BT900TTIZ60

£0S9
€059
€059
€059
€059

€059
€059

€0s9
€059

€059
€059

€059

€059

SAYY0d ONISNEDIT ¥ TYNOISSHIONd HWYN ANWYAWOD

G202/1IE/€0 :ONIANT dOI¥Id ¥Od
IMOdTY NMALIANIAXE XTHINOW

YIOMYd HLNOS J0 IIVLS

€059 ON ANWYJAWOD

WITWAN INNODDY YAINED dW0oD
LNINNDOa

OdNI - XdVHEHI FIVSSYHW J0 qU¥Od TT260 LINN IE9ANH

HILTYVHEH 60 ADNIDY

§Z0Z/62/€0 T95020Yd



geec

rryxx
XENE

¥y

T4

9L"EEE'GL
9L gee’SL

9L EEE’GL

¥9°FE9 LY
6T°EZ9'T

L9 G¥6
T0°81
£€9°G6¥
88°€91
ST TT0'99

PT 6EL’T
00°S¥T

82 LPP

60 6EE
79°888°1
GL TIBL'Z
B0 8T0°SS
05°Z6E’‘E
007092

ZI1°669°L
gL LPS

CT L¥S
00°2ST L

00°2ST'L

ALYA-OL-9d¥dX

9T GEL’P
9T SEL'F

91 SEL'P

LT 876°C
00°

00°
00~
00°
00°
LT 8V6°C

SL TIFE
0522
00°

00"

L9 T09
SL° %8¢
00"

0G LEV'T
00°092

66°98L°T
66°9¢T

66921
00°099°'T

00°099°'T

HLNOW LNITAND

TI260 :LINO €
0¥8T900TTZ60 ‘WIALNIAD

SOUVOo"H ONISNADIT ¥ TYNOISSHIOWd €059 *dWNOD

SHSNIAXE ONILVIHdO (4 Hhele) 4

STYIYHLVW ¥ SHITJANS so0es S LOOY

HI¥LS0Od 000000000000S€5025 €059 O0OF8T900TTZ60

ILVW 439 ¥ OITdNd "ddNS 000000000000€EES0ZS €0S9 O0FP8TI900TTIZ60
HLVLS-ONILLNI¥Yd 000000000000T€S025 €099 OFP8T900TTZ60

SHITdANS FDIAIO 00000000000020S025 €059 OFBTI900TIZ60

SEDIAY¥ES TYNLOYILNOD voecs *LOOY

HOIAMES TYNLOVMLINOD ¥HHLO (000000000000967025 €059 O0OFBIS00TIZ60
SOAMS SNOILVOINNWWODHTHL (080000000000£S702S €059 OFV8T900TTZ60
SHOIA¥ES SHDYNOSEY NVWNH 00000000000L02702S €059 O0FP8T900TITZ60
SHOIAYES IWOW STHODEY  000000000007¥02¥0ZS €059 OF8T900TTZ60
SHOIAMHS TVIINZD 00000000000002702S €0S9 OFPSTI900TIZ60
HALYLS-SADIAMES WALNAWOD 0000000000008T702S €059 OFST900TIZ60
LNVLIASNOD LNAWEDYNYW 00000000000060¥02S €059 O0F8T900TIZ60
LNYLTASNOD TY¥DET 00000000000080¥02S €059 O0OFSTI900TTIZ60
INVLTASNOD YALNIWOD 00000000000050702ZS €059 O0OFBT900TTZ60
SHOIAGAS TUYNOSHHA 18 +LODY

SLIJEINTE HIXOTIWH c01g *LOJVW

HYVHS S, ¥HA0TdWA-ISYO 000000000000T0Z0TS €0S9 OFBT900TTIZ60
SHIYYIVS dIX0TIWNIE 1019 ginee) §
SHEA SYdW WWOD 3 quW¥Oo" 000000000000£0TOTS €0S9 OF8TI900TITZ60

SQYYO0d ONISNEDIT ¥ TYNOISSHEIOUd

NOILAI¥OSHEd

S20Z/TE/E0 :ONIANE QOI¥Ad HOJ
LINO LADANT X9 I¥0d3d LOHECHO-9NS/LOACE0 XTHLNOW
YLOMVd HLNOS J0 HLV.LS

dWNYN ANYAWOD

€059 ON ANWYAHWOD

INNODOY dHoD YAILNAD

OANI - AdWVNAHIL ADVSSYW J0 auvod 11260 S-NALNAD
OANI - AAVHAHIL FOVSSYW JI0 aUvod II260 LINN IIoand
HLTYIH 60 ADNTOY

scoe/62/€0 TASTZOVH



Draft Updated Records Retention and Destruction Schedule

The pages that follow contain draft updates to the Massage Therapy Board Records
Retention and Destruction Schedule.

The proposed changes are shown with a strikethrough for deletions and an underscore
for additions.

Pages that contain proposed changes are:
3, 4,5 6,7 8 12, 13, 15, 18
The Board may choose to accept these changes, revise the proposed changes, add or

subtract language, or make no changes to the Records Retention and Destruction
Schedule.



S

BOARD OF
MASSAGE THERAPY

RECORDS RETENTION AND
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

State of South Dakota
Bureau of Administration

Records Management Program

(605) 773-3589

Printed on Recycled Paper



PBM 01234

DEPARTMENTOF  RECORDS MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

104 South Garfield
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT ./ "5 Fagt Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501-5070
BUREAU OF Phone: (605) 773-3589
bReaTFACES. GREATPLACES. ADMINISTRATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: State Agencies
FROM: Dana Hoffer

State Records Manager
SUBJECT: Records Retention and Destruction Schedule Manual
DATE: December 22, 2016

In 1967, the South Dakota Legislature established the Records Management Program and the
Records Destruction Board. In the same act, the Legislature required every State agency to
develop a records retention and destruction schedule and declared that “No record shall be
destroyed or otherwise disposed of by any agency of the State unless it is determined by majority
vote of such board (Records Destruction Board) that the record has no further administrative, legal,
fiscal, research or historical value.”

According to Administrative Rule 24:52:11:01, any State government agency planning to destroy

agency records shall notify the State Archivist 30 days before the date of the proposed destruction.
The request shall include the name or title of the records, inclusive dates, information content of
the records, and quantity. This rule applies to all records, including those granted exclusive or
continuous disposal authorization by the Records Destruction Board, with the following
exceptions: vouchers and supporting documents; warrants; personnel and payroll records;
client/case files; capital asset inventories; cash receipts; and duplicate copies of state publications.

The State Archivist has 30 days to certify that the records have no permanent value and may be
destroyed, or to make arrangements to transfer the records to the archives. If the Archivist fails to
make a recommendation within this time, the records may be destroyed, provided that the agency
has received authorization from the Records Destruction Board.

Finally, if you have any questions about implementing this manual or about your records in
general, please contact Records Management at 773-3589. We will welcome an opportunity to
discuss the proper implementation of sound records management practices.



South Dakota Codified Laws:

1-27-1.  Public records open to inspection and copying. Except as otherwise expressly provided
by statute, all citizens of this state, and all other persons interested in the examination of the public
records, as defined in § 1-27-1.1, are hereby fully empowered and authorized to examine such
public record, and make memoranda and abstracts there from during the hours the respective
offices are open for the ordinary transaction of business and, unless federal copyright law
otherwise provides, obtain copies of public records in accordance with this chapter.

Each government entity or elected or appointed government official shall, during normal business
hours, make available to the public for inspection and copying in the manner set forth in this
chapter all public records held by that entity or official.

1-27-1.1.  Public records defined. Unless any other statute, ordinance, or rule expressly provides
that particular information or records may not be made public, public records include all records
and documents, regardless of physical form, of or belonging to this state, any county, municipality,
political subdivision, or tax-supported district in this state, or any agency, branch, department,
board, bureau, commission, council, subunit, or committee of any of the foregoing. Data which is
a public record in its original form remains a public record when maintained in any other form.
For the purposes of §§ 1-27-1 to 1-27-1.15, inclusive, a tax-supported district includes any business
improvement district created pursuant to chapter 9-55.

1-27-9.  Records management programs--Definition of terms. Terms used in §§ 1-27-9 to 1-27-
18, inclusive, mean:

2) "Record," a document, book, paper, photograph, sound recording, or other material,
regardless of physical form or characteristics, made or received pursuant to law or ordinance or in
connection with the transaction of official business. Library and museum material made or
acquired and preserved solely for reference or exhibition purposes, extra copies of documents
preserved only for convenience of reference, and stocks of publications and of processed
documents are not included within the definition of records as used in §§ 1-27-9 to 1-27-18,
inclusive.

1-27-11.  Board to supervise destruction of records--State records manager as ex officio member-
-Permission required for destruction. There is hereby created a board consisting of the
commissioner of administration, state auditor, attorney general, auditor-general, and state archivist
to supervise and authorize the destruction of records. The state records manager shall also serve as
an ex officio member in an advisory capacity only. No record may be destroyed or otherwise
disposed of by any agency of the state unless it is determined by majority vote of the board that
the record has no further administrative, legal, fiscal, research, or historical value.

1-27-15.  Destruction of non-record materials. Any non-record material not included within the
definition of records as contained in § 1-27-9 may be destroyed at any time by the agency in

possession of such materials without the prior approval of the commissioner of administration.

Definitions:
Superseded: To take the place of; replace.

Obsolete: No longer in use.



BMT-1.
BMT-2.
BMT-3.
BMT-4.
BMT-S.
BMT-6.
BMT-7.
BMT-8.
BMT-9.

BMT-10.
BMT-11.
BMT-12.
BMT-13.
BMT-14.
BMT-15.
BMT-16.
BMT-17.
BMT-18.
BMT-19.
BMT-20.
BMT-21.
BMT-22.
BMT-23.
BMT-24.
BMT-25.
BMT-26.
BMT-27.
BMT-28.
BMT-29.
BMT-30.
BMT-31.
BMT-32.
BMT-33.
BMT-34.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Board of Massage Therapy:

ADMINISTRATIVE REFERENCE FILES: ....ouoeeeerenenseoesnsesssssssemssessenns 1
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES PROMULGATION FILES: ..., .2
ANNUAL REPORTS s sousouaassissssisusssiiiisssscssonmmasns srosenssresesrssrssess sssessssssrnss 3
APPLICATION FIILESS wconususuusrsssssisussussssisisssisssamasssmsssnssrmamoossoressssessssomasss 3
APPLICATIONS, INCOMPLETE/NON-APPROVED:.......ooveoveeresese 4
ASSOCIATION AND ORGANIZATION FILES: ...cuvvuvvrereeeeenserssessessenn, 4
AUDIT REPORTS:......ccccvceuersrensasrsnsesess sasssesetentsansasssessssrsansessansessssssassanansesnnes 5
BOARD MEETING FILES: .....ccuvuunrnnrenrrnnecsiesscnsesssnsssssnsesnssssssssessessessessonns 5
BOARD MEMBER FILES: .....coovvuonsuuirrncsrmsmsssssscsssemsssssmssmsssssessssssssesseess 6
BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY DATABASE RECORDS:................. 6
BUDGET FILES: .......ccoeoveunnee T 7
COMPLAINT FILES: .u.cuucuieunenenenssensnsssesmsessssesssssssessenssssssssssssesssssssssassenens 7
CONTINUING EDUCATION CREDIT AUDITS: «.ccuvvereerereresrnesssssesnssonnns 8
CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM RECORDS: ....vovvereeeeenenen 8
CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND AGREEMENTS: .....coooovvmeeeerreeeresessressonn. 9
CORRESPONDENCE, GENERAL:.......ocovvruesussscnsemssssemsessssesssssossssssesnens 9
DEPOBITS: ccccnvsissnsississsssassssssssssssssansasssssansassssssesssensssssessssasssssansissssssosssosssssinsis 9
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION RECORDS: ....cuuceevevrereeseeernssessons 10
EXREINSI LIRS ooy vcunmmsesonssssnsssions s issississ sifsssiiisinmnsmnernsassnsosse sosasansnrs 10
KINANCIAL ST ATENMENTS . .commmumsmnssso i e s s 11
JOB TICKETS, CENTRAL DUPLICATING: ....cucvueeeecenssnssessnsssensessessenes 11
LEGISLATION FILES: c..cuuoiuistssninrennssnsnnssssnsessssessassesssesssmssssssssnsssesnssnsssssss 12
LICENBER. BILIES ysussmmssuscisintiisisisssinanmmasssetsessoscecsnsssessrsass sersscstsmmsasasssss 12
LICENSEE TISTS wuooosssomusnensssssmnssssnmmsioimiisiiiammmsssmmesssesissossms 13
NEWNLELLER FILEBR.....cocmmmmimssms s i 13
OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS:....cceceeremnururnsssressssasesssssssnerssssssassensassssnensases 14
POLICIES AND POSITIONS: ......ooiiereneterrrenesessesssesse e esscnesessemssssmensens 14
MINUTES, BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY :.......ccovonnusvernsessmssssessnsens 15
RECEIPTS: ccuuucntirsrrnninnessssnsinsessassasssssssssssssssnsssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsessessases 15
RECORDS MANAGEMENT FILES: ......covueeuirereernenenssssessssssssssssnssnsmssnns 16
SOUTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL SYSTEM REPORTS: ....coooevvrrrrerrnnnes 17
SURPLUS PROPERTY FILES:......cccceeeeeunererrnssssssssscsssssossssssssnsessassnssseses 18
TEMPDRARY PERMIT FILES: ...cussssvonosssssss i 18
VOUCHERS: «....ccerrentieniescesssssssssssssnsssmsssessesssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssnsens 19

Page: i



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-1.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

ADMINISTRATIVE REFERENCE FILES:

This series contains information used in the daily administration of the
Board. Information may include, but is not limited to: equipment,
inventory, mailing lists, monthly reports, research materials, reference
manuals, rules and regulations, property management information,
logs, and other related information. This record series is maintained
for reference purposes.

RETENTION: Retain current in office. Destroy superseded or
obsolete.

(Note: Review files on a yearly basis to avoid build-up of superseded
or obsolete materials.)

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

Page: 1



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

BMT-2.

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES PROMULGATION FILES:

This series is arranged by subject matter and contains administrative
rules promulgation files. Information may include: notices of public
hearings, affidavits of publication of notices, written comment from the
public, transcripts of hearings, and final decisions. Files have little
reference activity once the hearing has been held unless someone
requests a copy of the transcript. This record series is maintained for

documenting the proper promulgation of administrative rules pursuant
to SDCL 1-26.

RETENTION: FINAL DECISIONS: Retain permanently in office.

ALL OTHER DOCUMENTATION: Retain in office for as long as
rules are in effect, then destroy.

(Note: SDCL 1-26-7 states in part that “each agency shall keep the
original records, documents, and instruments required by the chapter.”
There is no time frame included for these records. Since SDCL 1-26-6.8
provided that “No rule is enforceable in the courts unless properly
adopted,” the records must be maintained at least until a curative statute
has been adopted by the Legislature similar to SDCL 1-26a-2, which
cures all defects in the adoption of rules appearing in the 1974 printed
ARSD.)

Last Updated 2016

16-012

Page: 2



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-3.

BMT-4.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

ANNUAL REPORTS:

This series is arranged chronologically and contains the originals of all
annual reports written by the Board to summarize their activities for
the previous year. Information may include: number of licenses
issued, number of inspections conducted (if applicable), number of
violations noted, man hours, time reports, and other related
information. A copy of this report is filed annually with the
Department of Health. This record series is used for reference to
compare activities from year to year.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

APPLICATION FILES:

This series is arranged alphabetically and documents individuals
applying for licensure, inactive licensure, reactive licensure,
temporary permit, or licensure by reciprocity. Information may
include: application, verification of education, official transcripts, and
verification of licensure in another state. This record series is used to
determine eligibility for licensure.

RETENTION:  Transfer approved applications to respective
“Licensee Database Fite Record”.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 3



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-S5.

BMT-6.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

APPLICATIONS, INCOMPLETE/NON-APPROVED:

This series is arranged alphabetically and contains applications that are
incomplete or otherwise not approved for license. Information may
include: an application, transcripts, and verification of licensure in
another state. This record series is maintained to document application
work in progress pending Board action.

RETENTION: Retain4—years—in—office—then sScan paper

applications to licensee database record. and convert digital images to
microfilm applications to licensee database record. Maintain digital
images in licensee database record and-mierofilm for 46 25 years.
Destroy digital images and-microfilm after 25 years.

ASSOCIATION AND ORGANIZATION FILES:

This series is arranged chronologically and contains current
correspondence and newsletters from professional associations and/or
organizations to which the Board of Massage Therapy belongs.
Information may include: minutes of association meetings, conference
agendas, expense reports, participants names, and other State’s massage
therapy legislation. This record series is used for reference purposes
concerning ideas and policies suggested and used by these associations.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

16-012

Page: 4



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-7.

BMT-8.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

AUDIT REPORTS:

This series is arranged chronologically and contains Legislative Audit
reports concerning the expenditure and administration of funds.
Information may include: cover letters, statement of assets, revenues
and expenditures, change of fund cash balances, and observations and
recommendations. This record series is maintained for identifying
problem areas and discrepancies so that corrective measures may be
implemented.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

(Note: Legislative Audit maintains the reports permanently.)

BOARD MEETING FILES:

This series is arranged chronologically by meeting date and may contain
handout material and agenda items to be discussed at the next Board
meeting. Information may include: date. time and location of the
meeting, items under old business, items under new business, financial
information, handouts, and any licensure related issues. This record
series is used to determine the course of the board meetings.

RETENTION: Retain eurrent digital copies in office. Destroy
superseded or obsolete once the meeting minutes have been approved.

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

16-012

Page: 5



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD
SERIES NO.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

BMT-9.

BMT-10.

BOARD MEMBER FILES:

This series is arranged alphabetically and contains information
regarding individual Board members. Information may include: letters
of appointment, terms, expiration dates, payroll information, rosters,
and correspondence. This record series is maintained to document
member appointments to the Board of Massage Therapy and any related
information pertaining to each.

RETENTION: Retain 4 10 years after termination, then destroy.

BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY DATABASE RECORDS:

This computer licensure system is arranged numerically by license
number and contains the actual license information for each licensee or
certificate holder under the jurisdiction of the South Dakota Board of
Massage Therapy. These records are stored on the Board’s licensure
computer system. Information may include: name, address, date of
birth, social security number, license number, licensure status,
education, exam information, continuing education information, and
insurance information. This record series is maintained for verification
and licensure purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 50 years after license expiration or inactivation,
then delete.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 6



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-11.

BMT-12.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

BUDGET FILES:

This series is arranged chronologically and may contain the information
used to prepare the yearly budget request. Information may include:
budget requests, operating budgets balance sheets, budget projections,
projected salaries, dispersions, and other related information. This
record series is used throughout the year in monitoring program
activities and for preparing new budget requests.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

COMPLAINT FILES:

This series contains all related correspondence received from either the
general public or initiated by the Board of Massage Therapy concerning
problems which have occurred with licensed or non-licensed massage
therapists. Information may include: nature of the complaint, related
correspondence, investigation of the allegation, conclusion of the
investigation, National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) reports, and
related materials. This record series is used by the Board to determine
if a complaint is substantiated and if so, to take corrective action.

RETENTION: LICENSED: Retain until case closed, then transfer to
the respective “Licensee File”

NON-LICENSED: Retain 50 years, then destroy.

NOTE: Remove reference to cease and desist because the board is not
allowed to send cease and desist letters.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 7



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-13.

BMT-14.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

CONTINUING EDUCATION CREDIT AUDITS:

This series is arranged chronologically and contains random audits of
continuing education credits received by massage therapists.
Information may include: date of audit, name, findings of fact, and
education verifications. This record series is used to verify that massage
therapists received the education stated on their renewal applications.

RETENTION: Scan paper copies when received and place in
licensee’s database record. Retain paper copies 4 years in office, then
destroy.

CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM RECORDS:

This series is arranged numerically by date, which is approved annually
to offer continuing education courses in massage therapy. Information
may include: school or seminar name, course information, sample of
text or handouts, correspondence, course outline, names of participants,
date, and credit given. This record series is used to certify qualified
classes, and review course data.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 8



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:
(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams
RM CUSTOMER #: 0003
R.D.B.
RECORD AUTHORITY

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

BMT-15. CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND AGREEMENTS:

16-012
This series may contain contracts, leases, and agreements between the
Board of Massage Therapy and other parties. Information may include:
terms and conditions of the contracts and agreements, effective dates,
costs, and funding sources. This record series is maintained for
reference and audit purposes.

RETENTION: Retain current in office. Destroy 6 years after
terminated provided all litigation, claims, and audit findings involving
the records have been resolved and final action has been taken.

(Note: SDCL 1-24A-1 requires consulting contracts be filed with the
State Auditor.)

BMT-16. CORRESPONDENCE, GENERAL:

16-012
This series is arranged chronologically and contains both copies of
letters and memorandums sent, and originals of letters and
memorandums received. The information is used for occasional
reference and documentation pertaining to regulatory questions.

RETENTION: Retain 1 year in office, then destroy.

BMT-17. DEPOSITS:

16-012
This series contains deposit slips submitted with receipts. Information
may include: date, account number, an itemized list of who have paid
license fees, receipt numbers, amounts, and total amount deposited. This
record series is maintained for audit purposes to verify that all deposits
were made.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

Page: 9
Last Updated 2016



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION;: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

BMT-18.

BMT-19.

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION RECORDS:

This series may contain e-mail messages, voicemail messages,
recorded telephone conversations, instant messages, etc. created or
received by employees of the agency.

RETENTION: Determine the record status of the message based on
the content. If the message is an official record made or received
pursuant to law or in connection with the transaction of official
business, the retention period should be covered by an existing record
series in the respective agency’s retention manual. It is permissible to
print record e-mails and file them with like paper records.

NON-RECORD MESSAGES: Retain until action has been taken, then
destroy or delete.

EXPENSE FILES:

This series contains itemized listings of all expenses incurred by Board
members. Information may include: name, dates, type of expenditures,
amounts, and totals. This record series is used for support and
documentation of vouchers submitted for payment.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 10



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:
(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams
RM CUSTOMER #: 0003
R.D.B.
RECORD AUTHORITY

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

BMT-20. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

16-012
Financial statements provide an overview of the agency’s financial
condition for a given year. Information may include: balance sheets,
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
(budgeted and actual); statement of fixed assets; summary of significant
accounting procedures; supplemental information and working papers.
This record series is maintained for reference and audit purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,

claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

BMT-21. JOB TICKETS, CENTRAL DUPLICATING:

16-012
This series is arranged numerically contains the printing requisition as
submitted by the Board. Information may include: agency code,
agency name, mailing address, submitted by, job description, date
sent, date needed, number of pages, quantity of copies, printing
specifications, and description. The information is used to ensure
accurate completion of the request.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

Page: 11
Last Updated 2016



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-22.

BMT-23.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

R.D.B.

AUTHORITY
TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

LEGISLATION FILES:

16-012

This series is arranged chronologically and constitutes the Board’s
central file of all proposed legislation and legislation from previous
years. Information may include: resource materials, bill tracking
printouts, copies of House and Senate bills, preliminary bill drafts,
and the final drafts of proposed legislation. This record series is
used for bill drafting, submission, and tracking during the legislative
session.

RETENTION: Retain current in office. Destroy superseded or
obsolete.

LICENSEE FILES:

16-012

This series is arranged numerically and documents personal data for
active, inactive, and expired licensed massage therapists. Information
may include: original applications, college grade transcripts, renewal
applications, verification of most current continuing education units,
verification of education, substantiated complaints, and proof of
insurance. This record series is used to document the licensing and
renewal processes of all massage therapists. Scan applications when
complete and digitally file in applicant’s database record.

RETENTION: Retain-in-office4-years-after license-expiration-or 10

. .
atto At s o PP ane fa anvart Aio

images—to-microfilm— Destroy—ﬂﬂages—&&d—m&ereﬁha—aﬁef—ég—yeaﬁ: i ¥ .

database record 25 years after license expiration or inactivation.

Page: 12

Last Updated 2016



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:
(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams
RM CUSTOMER #: 0003
R.D.B.
RECORD AUTHORITY

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

BMT-24. LICENSEE LIST:

16-012
This series contains a list of grandfathered licensee, active licensees
and temporary permit holders issued by the Board of Massage
Therapy.  Active licensees and temporary permit holders are
available on the Board’s website. Information may include: license
number, first and last name, city, state, issue date, and expiration
date. This record series is used reference and for licensure verification.

RETENTION: Retain information current. Destroy superseded or
obsolete.

BMT-25. NEWSLETTER FILES:

The Board of Massage Therapy does not publish newsletters.

Page: 13

Last Updated 2016



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:
(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams
RM CUSTOMER #: 0003
R.D.B.
RECORD AUTHORITY

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

BMT-26. OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS:

16-012
This series contains open record requests received by agencies.
Information may include: open records request, correspondence,
denial letters, and supporting documentation. This series is maintained
to document the outcome of requests and for reference purposes.
Denial letters are maintained pursuant to SDCL 1-27-1.4.

RETENTION: DENIAL LETTERS: Retain permanently.
ALL OTHER INFORMANTION: Retain 4 years in office, then

destroy provided all litigation, claims, and audit findings involving the
records have been resolved and final action has been taken.

BMT-27. POLICIES AND POSITIONS:

16-012
This series is arranged by topic and contains the current policies and
positions implemented by the Board. Information may include the
Board's position or interpretation on issues and policies, and date of
implementation or adoption. This record series is used to determine the
proper course of action to take in certain situations.

RETENTION: Retain current in office. Destroy superseded or
obsolete.

Page: 14
Last Updated 2016



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD
SERIES NO.

BMT-28.

BMT-29.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

MINUTES, BOARD OF MASSAGE THERAPY:

This series is arranged chronologically and contains the official minutes
of the Board meetings. Information may include: dates of meetings,
members present, topics discussed, actions taken, and the signature of
the secretary. This record series is used for occasional reference and
documentation purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 4-years-in-officethensean-paper-and-convert

digits ages—te 5 digital
copies permanently.
RECEIPTS:

This series contains receipts used to documents the receipt of
money. Information may include: date money was received,
amount received, funds and accounts to be credited, the amount to
be credited, and signature of the person receiving the money. This
record series is maintained for audit purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved
and final action has been taken.

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

16-012

Page: 15



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

BMT-30.

RECORDS MANAGEMENT FILES:

This series contains records management information. Information may
include: copies of the standard records transfer receipt forms, Records
Retention and Destruction Schedule (RRDS), copies of microfilm
project registration forms, inventory listings, and microfilm and box
destruction authorization forms. This record series is maintained for
tracking records sent to Records Management storage, to document the
time each record series must be legally maintained, and to document
authorization granted to RM for destruction of obsolete records.

RETENTION: DESTRUCTION AUTHORIZATION FORMS:
Retain 4 years in office, then destroy.

ALL OTHER INFORMATION: Retain current in office. Destroy
superseded or obsolete.

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

Page: 16



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-31.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

SOUTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL SYSTEM REPORTS:

These daily, weekly, monthly**, and year-end ** reports are used to
monitor and reconcile fiscal year receipts and expenditures.
Information is maintained by the Finance Officer and may include:
revenue and journal voucher reports*, open purchase order reports,
available funds reports*, revenue analysis reports, state general ledger
trail balance®, company general ledger trial balance*, expenditure
reports®, bank reconciliation reports*, employee receivable reports*,
warrant register reports*, encumbrance detail reports*, accounts
payable reports*, projects reports*, cash center reports*, object/sub-
object reports*, budget adjustments reports, Special Bureau of
Administration revenue reports, agency funds activity reports*,
company 8,000 trail balance by center*, encumbrance balance report™®,
and special travel expenditure reports. This record series is maintained
for audit purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

(Note: the asterisk (*) indicates reports maintained permanently by
the Bureau of Finance and Management. (**) Many of the June
monthly reports serve as the year-end reports.)

Last Updated 2016

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

16-012

Page: 17



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:

(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams

RECORD

SERIES NO.

BMT-32.

BMT-33.

RM CUSTOMER #: 0003

TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE

R.D.B.
AUTHORITY
NUMBER

SURPLUS PROPERTY FILES:

This series contains the form submitted to the director of South Dakota
Property Management for approval to dispose of State-owned personal
property and the written notification received from Property
Management designating the manner of disposal. Information may
include: agency name; date; address or location of property; phone
number; name of individual requesting; Property Management Officer’s
name; description of item(s); quantity: serial number; equipment
number; desired method of disposal as authorized:; reason for declaring
property as surplus; estimate of current value; suggested selling price;
minimum acceptable price; statement of content; fixed asset number, if
applicable; and any other information deemed necessary. This record
series is maintained pursuant to SDCL 5-24A.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,

claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved and
final action has been taken.

TEMPORARY PERMIT FILES:

This series contains requests for temporary permit applications for
individuals to become temporarily licensed as a massage therapist.
Information may include: name of facility, facility’s address and phone
number, name of individual authorized to request the permit, position
of authorized person, name of applicant, applicant’s address and phone
number, date of birth, social security number, license number, licensure
status, education, exam information, continuing education information,
insurance information, and authorized signatures. This record series is
maintained for reference purposes.

RETENTION: Retain 50 10 years in office licensee database record
following the date of expiration, then destroy.

Last Updated 2016

16-012

16-012

Page: 18



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT: Health

RECORDS RETENTION & DIVISION: Boards
DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE OFFICE: Massage Therapy
AUTHORIZATION FORM PROGRAM:
(Std Form RM-1 Rev 1/03) RECORDS OFFICER: Kari Williams
RM CUSTOMER #: 0003
R.D.B.
RECORD AUTHORITY

SERIES NO. TITLE---DESCRIPTION---RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION SCHEDULE NUMBER

BMT-34. VOUCHERS:

16-012
This series may contain copies of direct vouchers, receiving
vouchers, non-cash vouchers, travel vouchers, and journal vouchers,
along with copies of any supporting invoices or receipts. Vouchers
are used to enter transactions on the central accounting system.

RETENTION: Retain 4 years, then destroy provided all litigation,
claims, and audit findings involving the records have been resolved
and final action has been taken.

Page: 19
Last Updated 2016



Agenda Item #9 -- Complaint Process

At the January 22, 2025 meeting, there was discussion about the Board
adopting a policy for the Investigative Committee, consisting of one board
member, Executive Secretary, and legal counsel, to dismiss complaints that
do not contain probable cause. Legal Counsel Steve Blair suggested that
this be placed on the next meeting agenda for the possible adoption of a
policy in this regard.

Agenda Item #10 — Policy for Acceptance of Credit to
Clock Hours for Massage Therapy Education

At the January 22, 2025 meeting, there was discussion about the
conversation of credit hours to clock hours. In communicating with FSMTB
(Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards) recently, they advised that
generally 1 credit hour of education is equal to 29 clock hours.

It is being requested that the Board adopt a policy that one credit hour
equals 29 clock hours for purposes of reviewing massage therapy
education.



